
Chairperson                                                               Zoning Official  
Kenneth Aurecchia                                                                   Bernard J. Nascenzi, C.B.O. 
 
Vice-Chairperson                              Zoning Board Members 
Richard Fascia                                                                                                                                                       Anthony Pilozzi               
                                                                                                                                                                                  Joseph Anzelone 
Secretary 
Douglas Jeffrey                                                        Alternate Board Members 
            Bernard Frezza 
Counsel for the Board          Costanzo Caparrelli, Sr. 
Joseph Ballirano, Esq. 
               Recording Secretary 
                    Susan Leonardi 

 
JOHNSTON ZONING BOARD OF REVIEW       

100 Irons Avenue, Johnston, Rhode Island 02919 
Tel:  401-231-4135;   Fax:  401-231-4181  

 
MINUTES 

April 24, 2008 
 

The Zoning Board of Review held its monthly meeting on the 24th day of April, 2008, at 7:00 p.m., in the 
library at the Ferri Middle School, 10 Memorial Avenue, Johnston, RI. All persons interested in the 
following proposals had been requested to be present at this time. 
 
Present: Vice-Chairman Richard Fascia, Anthony Pilozzi, Bernard Frezza,  Joseph Anzelone, Secretary 
Douglas Jeffrey, Costanzo Caparrelli, Sr. 
 
Also present: Joseph Ballirano, Town Solicitor, Bernard Nascenzi, Zoning Official, Susan Leonardi, 
Recording Secretary, and Dianne Edson, Stenographer  
 
Mr. Pilozzi made the motion to accept the minutes of the March, 2008 meeting.  Mr. Frezza seconded the 
motion.  A voice vote was taken, all in favor. 

     
File 2007-02-IN- Continued from the December, 2007 meeting 

Owner:  Kenneth A. LaFazia 
Applicant:    R.C. Builders, Inc. 
Location:    Ostend Street, AP 15- Lot 28 
Lot Dimensions: Area:  13,080 square feet 
Zone:  R-15 (Residential – 15,000 sq. ft.) Zone   

                   Present use:  Vacant Land 
      Development  

Proposal: Construct a 24’ x 44’ (1,056 sq. ft.) single family dwelling 
     

Dimensional Variance petitioned under Article III, Section F, 
Table III-F-1  
 

    Minimum Lot Size Required: 15,000 sq. ft.; Proposed Lot Size 
Requested: 13,080 sq. ft.; Relief Requested for 1,920 sq. ft. 

     
    Minimum Right Side Yard Setback Required: 22 ft.; Proposed Right 

Side Yard Setback: 20 ft.; Relief Requested for 2 ft. 
 

 



Johnston Zoning Board Minutes  April 24, 2008 
 

2 / 8 
 

Kenneth LaFazia, after being duly sworn, stated that he was given a continuance to get the 
DEM permit transferred.  He is requesting to build a single family home on the property and 
needs dimensional relief on the right side setback.   
 
Mr. Nascenzi stated that he has visited the site with the Town Engineer.  There is a water 
issue in the area.  Mr. LaFazia stated that he is willing to work with the Town to do whatever 
is necessary.  There are public water and sewer available.  Mr. Nascenzi stated that proper 
drainage and soil erosion procedures will be required.  Mr. LaFazia stated that Mr. Carroccia 
will be the builder.  
 
Benedetto Zanni, abutter, was duly sworn.  Mr. Zanni stated that he believes this project will 
improve the area.   
 
Fred Manuppelli, abutter, was duly sworn.  Mr. Manuppelli stated that his father put in a 
fence so that the property would stay clean.  Mr. Fascia stated that no one has mentioned a 
fence this evening.  Mr. Manuppelli stated that there is a water problem in the area.  He is 
very concerned that the house will be built and sold.  The residents will then be left with a 
water issue that is worsening.   
 
Mr. Nascenzi stated that there is a drainage culvert that the applicants have volunteered to 
clean out.  No Certificate of Occupancy will be issued if the water issues get worse or if the 
water from this lot drains onto any other lot.  The builder will also be held to a drainage plan 
approved by the Town Engineer.   
 
Mr. Pilozzi stated that Mr. Carroccia is a reputable builder in Town and the Town has not had 
a problem with his work in the past.  The Board must rely on the statements of the Town 
Engineer and the Building Official when the decision is made. 
 
Mr. Manuppelli verified that this will be a single family home. Mr. Anzelone stated that it 
would be. 
 
Raymond Carroccia, builder, after being sworn, stated that he has been in business for 32 
years and has no complaints on his record.  He will do whatever the Town requires to 
alleviate the water issue.   
 
Mr. Anzelone made the motion to grant the application under Section O of Ordinance 941, 
with the relief being requested.  Mr. Frezza seconded the motion.  A voice vote was taken, all 
in favor. 
 

File 2008-10 

Owner:  Melissa Clemence 
Applicant:    Richard LaFazia 
Location:    Greenville Ave, AP 48/2- Lot 237 
Lot Dimensions: Frontage: 100 ft; Depth: 200 ft; Area:  20,151 square feet 
Zone:  R-20 (Residential – 20,000 sq. ft.) Zone   
Surveyor:  Robert Winward 
Engineer:  Jeffrey Campopiano, P.E. 

                   Present use:  Vacant Land 
      Development  

Proposal: To construct a 44’ x 40’ (1,600 sq. ft.) single family dwelling. 



Johnston Zoning Board Minutes  April 24, 2008 
 

3 / 8 
 

    Dimensional Variance petitioned under Article III, Section F, 
Table III-F-1. 

Minimum Lot Frontage Required: 120 ft.; Minimum Lot Frontage 
Requested: 99.79 ft.; Relief requested for 20.21 ft. 

Minimum Lot Width Required: 120 ft.; Minimum Lot Width 
Requested: 99.79 ft.; Relief Requested for 20.21 ft. 

 

Richard LaFazia, after being duly sworn, stated that he is requesting to build a single 
family home on the property.  He is requesting 20 feet of relief of Lot Frontage 
requirement.  Mr. Jeffrey stated that he is familiar with the area and the frontage is 
consistent with other lots in the area.   

Jeffrey Campopiano, Engineer, was duly sworn.  Mr. Campopiano stated that most of 
the abutting lots have the same frontage.   

Mr. LaFazia stated that he owns 1 abutting lot, but not the subject property. Mr. 
Nascenzi stated that if he does purchase the subject lot, the two lots may have to be 
merged. 

Mr. LaFazia stated that the home being built will be for his parents.  He lives in the 
lot behind the subject lot.   

Mr. Jeffrey stated that the home is consistent with other homes in the area. 

No abutters appeared for or against the project.  

Mr. Pilozzi made the motion to grant the application.  It is conformance with 
Ordinance 941.  Mr. Jeffrey seconded the motion. 

A voice vote was taken, all in favor. 

 
File 2008-08 

Owner:  Frank Dirico 
Applicant:    MediaFLO USA, Inc. 
Location:    104 Peck Hill Road, AP 43 - Lot 521 
Lot Dimensions: Area:  15.3 acres 
Zone:  I (Industrial) Zone   
Surveyor:  Hub Survey Associates, Inc. 
Attorney:  Gregory Mercier, Esq. – Duval & Associates, LLC 
Surveyor:  Hub Survey Associates, Inc. 

                   Present use:  Wireless Telecommunications Tower 
      Development  

Proposal: To collocate additional MediaFLO USA antennas on tower, install 
broadcast equipment inside an existing building,  install 2 ground-
mounted antennas, and install 2 GPS antennas on an existing ice shield 
structure. 
Special Use Permit petitioned under Article III, Section D, Table 
III-D-1, Subsection 5.4 – Collocation of cellular antennas on 
communications tower 
 



Johnston Zoning Board Minutes  April 24, 2008 
 

4 / 8 
 

Robert Humphrey, attorney for the applicant presented the application to the Board.   
 
Tom Voltero, attorney for the applicant, stated that he supervises all zoning projects 
across the United States.  He is not licensed in Rhode Island.  This is why Mr. 
Humphrey is present.   
 
Mr. Voltero stated that the tower is pre-existing and is 460 feet tall. 
 
Tom Lennon, after being duly sworn, stated that the other companies currently on the 
tower are Sprint, Nextel, Verizon, AT & T, as well as other government uses.  Mr. 
Pilozzi asked what MediaFLO would be transmitting.  Mr. Lennon stated that 
MediaFLO will be providing TV content for cell phones.  There will be several sites 
in Rhode Island that MediaFLO will be using.  This is the first site in Rhode Island. 
 
At this moment, there is no MediaFLO service in Rhode Island.  Mr. Voltero showed 
the Board a demonstration of the service. 
 
Mr. Pilozzi asked if there were any photos of the site. Mr. Voltero stated that the 
documents are in the package that was submitted to the Board.   
 
Mr. Voltero stated that the project consists of installing a 40-foot pole on top of the 
tower with a 25-foot antenna mounted along side of that.  It has a blinking light as 
required by the FAA.   
 
Mr. Nascenzi stated that the tower will be over 500 feet tall.  He would like to see 
engineering on this tower.  A structural analysis will also be required as relating to 
stress and wind loads.  Mr. Nascenzi asked how the tower would be powered.   
  

Mr. Voltero stated that this information will be submitted with the building permit.   

Mr. Lennon stated that the entire property is fenced with a six-foot chain link fence 
with a locked gate.  There will be no additional sheds constructed.  There will be 
ground mounted antennas.  Mr. Lennon stated that the applicant is willing to fence in 
the ground mounted antennas.   

Mr. Jeffrey stated that he would not be comfortable voting on this application with 
the engineering reports.  Mr. Lennon stated that the reports are on his laptop. 

Mr. Ballirano suggested that the applicants continue for one month and submit the 
reports before the next meeting. 

Mr. Fascia stated that the Board will grant a continuance so that the applicant can 
submit the documentation being requested. 

Mr. Frezza made the motion to continue the matter until next month.  This was 
seconded by Mr. Jeffrey.  A voice vote was taken, all in favor. 

 
 

 



Johnston Zoning Board Minutes  April 24, 2008 
 

5 / 8 
 

File 2008-09 

Owner:                 Laber and Lorrain Russo 
Applicant:    Ralph Mangiarelli, Jr. 
Location:    1208 Atwood Ave, AP 44 - Lot 332 
Lot Dimensions: Area:  17,680 ± sq. ft. 
Zone:               B-1 (Neighborhood Business) Zone   

             Present use:  Commercial Business 
Development  

Proposal: To temporarily allow Mangiarelli’s Fruit Stand to operate business until 
the permanent location is available. 

 
Special Use Permit petitioned under Article III, Section D, Table 
III-D-1, Subsection 10.3 – Fruit/vegetable stand / supermarket 
 

Ralph Mangiarelli, Jr. was duly sworn.  Mr. Mangiarelli stated that he wishes to use the 
site to run his business until the new building is completed.   
 
Mr. Pilozzi stated that the Board may grant a temporary one-year only Special Use 
Permit to operate in this location.  Once Mr. Mangiarelli moves to the new building, the 
special use permit goes away.   
 
Mr. Nascenzi stated that the applicant has done everything requested of them.  He has 
installed a fire alarm system at his own expense and brought the building up to code.   
 
Mr. Ballirano stated that the Special Use Permit runs with the land.  If someone in the 
future wants to run a fruit/vegetable stand, it would be very difficult for the Board to 
deny it. 
 
No abutters appeared for or against the project. 
 
Mr. Pilozzi made the motion to grant the application with the stipulation that the Special 
Use Permit expires when Mr. Mangiarelli moves from the premises. 
 
Mr. Frezza seconded the motion.  A voice vote was taken, all in favor. 
 
Mr. Jeffrey excused himself and left the meeting. Mr. Costanzo Caparrelli, Sr. will be 
sitting in his place. 
 

File 2008-11 

Owner:  Pasco Cardillo, Jr. and Albert Cardillo 
Applicant:    GB New England 2, LLC 
Location:    1993 Plainfield Pike, AP 29 - Lot 13 
Lot Dimensions: Frontage:  203± ft.; Depth: 911± ft.; Area: 184,790± sq ft 
Zone:  B-2 (General Business) Zone   
Attorney:  K. Joseph Shekarchi, Esq. 
Surveyor:  Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc. 
Engineer:  Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc. 
Architect:  BKA Architects, Inc. 

                   Present use:  Residential Dwelling with Greenhouses 



Johnston Zoning Board Minutes  April 24, 2008 
 

6 / 8 
 

      Development  
Proposal: To demolish all existing buildings, construct a 12,900± sq. ft. retail CVS 

store with double drive-thru. 
    Special Use Permit petitioned under Article III, Section D, Table 

III-D-1, Subsection 8.5 – Drive-thru 

    Dimensional Variance petitioned under Article III, Section F, 
Table III –F-1 

    Minimum Right Side Yard Setback Required: 40 ft.; Right Side 
Yard Setback Requested: 31.5 ft.; Relief requested for 8.5 ft. 

    Relief from Regulations – Parking inside front setback – Article 
III, Section H, Subsection 5 

 

Mr. Fascia stated that his wife is an employee of CVS and has been for 10 years.  
This will in no way influence his objectivity in this matter. 

K. Joseph Shekarchi, Esq. stated that he represents the applicant, GB NE II, the 
developer for CVS. 

Mr. Pilozzi asked if the certified mail notices were sent.  Mr. Shekarchi stated that 
they were.  No abutters were in the audience. 

Mr. Shekarchi explained the project to the Board.  The CVS store will have a double 
drive-thru for drop-off and pick-up of prescriptions.  Mr. Shekarchi stated that some 
of the wetlands in the rear of the property will be donated to the Town. 

This project will be serviced by an I.S.D.S. and all permits required by DEM will be 
obtained.  The applicant tried to tie into the sewers in Cranston.  Cranston would not 
allow unless the building was moved to Cranston.  CVS wanted to stay in Johnston, 
so they will be using an I.S.D.S.   

Tony Moura, Project Manager and Engineer, stated that the exact type of I.S.D.S. has 
not been decided on yet.  They are hoping to use a standard system.  Whatever DEM 
will allow. 

Dave Morello, SVP of GB NE II, was duly sworn.  Mr. Morello stated that the 
maximum amount of employees at this location would be around 15.  The restroom 
does not have to be for the public, just the employees.   

Mr. Pilozzi asked if there were other stores running a similar system.  Mr. Morello 
stated that there are several others.  There are no problems at those locations.  Mr. 
Morello stated that they are not seeking a 24 hour operation at the moment. 

Mr. Pilozzi discussed the traffic situation.  Mr. Moura explained that the traffic signal 
will be relocated to be aligned with the driveway of the CVS.  It is a state road and 
they are applying for a Physical Alteration Permit to redesign the traffic flow. 

Mr. Pilozzi discussed the wetlands and the buffer that would be needed. Mr. Moura 
explained that a very small portion of the parking lot falls within the buffer.  They 
will be applying to DEM for approval.  The portion being donated to the Town is a 
little over 2 acres of land.  Mr. Pilozzi stated that it will be CVS’ responsibility to 
keep the area clean. 



Johnston Zoning Board Minutes  April 24, 2008 
 

7 / 8 
 

Mr. Anzelone asked where the dumpsters would be located on the property.  Mr. 
Moura explained that there will be two enclosed dumpsters, one for cardboard and 
one for trash.  He showed where they would be located on the plan.   

The drive-thru windows were discussed.  One for drop-off only and one for drop-off 
and pick-up. 

Mr. Pilozzi asked if the CVS currently in operation in Johnston would remain open.  
Mr. Morello stated that it would.  Mr. Pilozzi asked if there was going to be any 
request for signage relief.  Mr. Shekarchi stated that there would not.  CVS will stay 
within the regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Mr. Shekarchi stated that the project will have to go to the Planning Department as 
well.  Part of the process will be the subdivision to donate the land to the Town.   

Mr. Shekarchi stated that the applicant is looking for the following relief: 

a.  Special Use Permit for the double drive-thru. 

b.  Dimensional Relief on the side setbacks. 

c.  Relief from the Regulation against Parking in the front setback. 

d.  Relief from the Landscaping Regulations in the rear of the parking lot. 

 

Mr. Moura stated that they have hired a registered professional landscape architect 
and will use mature landscaping. 

Mr.Morello stated that Rhode Island is home to CVS.  They are very particular about 
their stores and their appearance.  CVS will take care of the store and the surrounding 
area.  

Mr. Moura stated that there is a stipulation in the code that requires a 25 foot buffer 
between a more intensive use and a less intensive use.  They are requesting a 10 foot 
buffer. Mr. Frezza asked if the parking lots for CVS and Dunkin Donuts would be 
connected.  Mr. Moura stated that they would not.  It was researched and it was 
determined that it would not work because of the grading of the two lots. 

Mr. Moura stated that the last relief the applicant is requesting is to have the 
Providence Water “hot box” located close to the street.  A “hot box” is a box that 
houses the water meter and a backup preventer; it protects the water supply by not 
allowing anyone to tap into the water system. 

Mr. Fascia asked if there was a water disbursement plan in place.  Mr. Moura stated 
that it was under development.  

Mr. Fascia asked when deliveries would be made to the location.  Mr. Morello stated 
that deliveries are generally made before the store opens in the morning.  Mr. Pilozzi 
stated that there have been problems in the past at the other location.  Deliveries 
would be made during the day and it caused traffic problems.  When the deliveries 
were moved to early morning or late night, the problems went away.   

No abutters appeared for or against the application. 



Johnston Zoning Board Minutes  April 24, 2008 
 

8 / 8 
 

Mr. Pilozzi made the motion to approve the application.  Mr. Frezza seconded the 
motion. 

A voice vote was taken, all in favor. 

 
       Adjourned at 8:34 p.m. 


	MINUTES
	April 24, 2008

